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1.0 Appendix 1: Figures 
 

 

Figure 1 Indicative site location (red) in relation to the Danson Park Registered Park and Garden (Green). Listed 
buildings shown as blue triangles (Historic England). Note the small scale of the site in relation to the much large 

footprint of the RPG 

 



 

 

 

Figure 2 Proposed plans for Danson House and surrounding area (Nathaniel Richmond's Estate Plan dated 1763). 
Note, whilst the house to the centre of the image does not appear to have the exact same footprint as existing, the 

plan is helpful in showing the sheer scale of the historic parkland 



 

 

 

Figure 3 North side of Danson House showing wing and stable blocks added in 1766 (George Barret the elder, c. 
1766) 

 

Figure 4 1786 engraving by Corbould showing Danson Hill, in Kent, the Seat of Sir John Boyd. Note the ornamental 
bridge to the left of the image, now lost 

http://www.rareoldprints.com/search/all%20categories?searchview&query=Corbould&count=10&view=web%5Call+categories


 

 

 

Figure 5 Greek Temple dated 1773 and designed by William Chambers, visible on 1897 OS map adjacent to a boat 
house. The building was listed in 1953 with the mansion. Photograph dated 1961 prior to it being dismantled and 

moved to The Bury, St Paul’s Walden, Hertfordshire. (Historic England) 

 



 

 

 

Figure 6 Tithe map of Bexley, surveyed 1838-1839 (published by G.Darbyshire & Sons, 1844). Indicative location of 
the site shown in red, listed stables in blue and Danson House in green. Entrance lodge shown in yellow (now 

demolished) helps to shows the vast expanse of the park by this time (drawing of lodge shown in figure 9) 

 



 

 

 

Figure 7 Detailed image of north east corner of the tithe map, 1340 is described as a ‘plantation’, possibly planted to 
conceal views of the toll booth seen on the turnpike road 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Figure 8 1873 OS map (with top left section spliced in) showing sheer extent of the park by this point, which includes 
large plots to the east of Danson Road, Danson Lane to the west and down to the Chapel House to the south (in 

red). Note early gate lodge is visible here (in blue) drawing of which can be seen in figure 9 



 

 

 

Figure 9 Drawing of the north western lodge to Danson Park (1800) by George Stanley Repton (ref: RIBA65339) 

 



 

 

 

Figure 10 1897 OS map showing the layout of the park during the ownership of the Bean family. Highlighted on the 
map are lost structures including, lodges (blue), Grecian temple (blue), ornamental bridge (yellow). The purple circle 

highlights the chapel house, now physically separate from the park by development and the A2 road 

 

 



 

 

 

Figure 11 1946 Aerial photograph. The municipal nature of the site can clearly be seen here with the entrance 
carriageway running from the north east (top right of this image) towards Danson House. Tennis courts dominate 

much of the landscape, and football pitches can be seen south of Danson House (bottom of image) 

 



 

 

 

Figure 12 Aerial view showing the setting of the park characterised by intense early to mid 20th century development 
with some later additions including the Bexley Grammar school to the west. The A2 to the south results in an abrupt 

end to the park and cut through its original footprint. The Chapel House is highlighted in yellow, the site in red 

 



 

 

 

Figure 13 Proposed site plan  

 

 

 

Figure 14 Proposed north elevation (top) and west elevation (bottom) 

 



 

 

 

 

Figure 15 Existing view of north east entrance looking into the park (top), and proposed visual (bottom) 

 



 

 

 

 

Figure 16 Existing view of north east entrance looking east towards the site from inside the park (top), and proposed 
visual (bottom) 

 

  



 

 
Appendix 2: Plates 
 

 

 

Plate 1 View of principal northern elevation of the grade I listed manor house 

 

Plate 2 View of southern elevation of the grade I listed Manor house. This elevation fronts on to views of the lake to 
the south 



 

 

 

Plate 3 View looking east across part of the west and southern elevation of the manor house showing its green 
landscaped setting 

 

Plate 4 View south from the manor house showing views across the grounds and the wider area 



 

 

 

Plate 5 View looking north across the lake, historically there would have been clear views towards the house, today 
the views are often glimpsed, with the house being concealed by much vegetation and tree cover 

 

Plate 6 View of southern elevation of the grade II* listed stable block 



 

 

 

Plate 7 Showing bowling clubhouse of no architectural merit 

 

Plate 8 View across the modern tennis courts reflecting municipal character of parts of the park 

 



 

 

 

Plate 9 Showing view into the north east corner of the site 

 

Plate 10 Showing view of out the north east corner of the site towards the gate piers and road junction 

 



 

 

 

Plate 11 View showing ramshackle appearance of ancillary structures to the rear of the site from the park 

 

Plate 12 View of unattractive rear boundary treatment to the site with blockwork gable to outbuilding visible 

 



 

 

 

Plate 13 Main entrance to the park from the east which has historically been used a principal entrance to the park 

 

Plate 14 Modern pedestrian entrance to the east of the park 



 

 

 

Plate 15 View showing setting of the park characterised by modern early 20th century housing to the east along 
Danson Road 

 

Plate 16 View showing another modern pedestrian entrance to the east of the park 



 

 

 

Plate 17 View showing setting of the park characterised by modern early 20th century housing to the east along 
Danson Road 

 

Plate 18 View of modern pedestrian entrance to the south east of the park adjacent to the lake 



 

 

 

Plate 19 View out of the park showing modern pedestrian entrance and modernist houses running along Danson 
Road 

 

Plate 20 View towards modern pedestrian entrance to south east of the lake 



 

 

 

Plate 21 View out of the south east corner of the park showing early/mid 20th century housing adjacent along Danson 
Road 

 

Plate 22 View into modern south western entrance to the park from Radnor Avenue 



 

 

  

Plate 23 View out of south western section of the park, showing 20th century houses along Radnor Avenue that form 
the setting of this part of the park 

 

Plate 24 View showing modern western entrance to the park along Danson Lane 



 

 

 

Plate 25 View showing setting of the park to the west along Danson Lane showing 20th century housing 

 

Plate 26 View of principal entrance to the park from the north west from Danson Lane. Here the setting is 
characterised by 20th century housing 



 

 

 
Plate 27 View looking out of the park towards the principal north west entrance to Danson Lane. Note 20th century 

housing characterises the setting in this location  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 
Appendix 3: List Descriptions  
 

Danson Park  

Official list entry 
Heritage Category: Park and Garden 
Grade: II 
List Entry Number: 1000211 
Date first listed: 01-Oct-1987 

Location 
The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority. 

County: Greater London Authority 

District: Bexley (London Borough) 

Parish: Non Civil Parish 

National Grid Reference: TQ4710575029, TQ4743874937 

Details 
Remains of an C18 landscape park attributed to Nathaniel Richmond. 

HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
The original Danson estate, known in C16 as Dansington, was, between 1571 and 1723, enlarged from 
100 acres (c 41ha) of woodland and arable to 250 acres (c 104ha) ornamented with waterworks and 
fishponds (Colson Stone 1997). In 1723 the owner John Styleman leased the estate to John Selwyn, 
on condition that he spend at least £1000 improving the estate which he did by buying up parcels of 
adjoining land, ornamenting the landscape, enlarging the house, and c 1745, re-routing the public 
road from Danson to Blendon. Selwyn died in 1751 and the lease of Danson was held by Styleman's 
widow until 1753 when John Boyd (later Sir John) took a full repairing lease on the original Danson 
House. By 1763 Boyd was making plans to rebuild the mansion and a plan dated 1763 which was 
drawn up by Rev Spence when he visited Danson shows the site of the new mansion and, like another 
entitled A plan for the proposed alteration at Danson Hill (1762/3), shows a mansion standing alone 
on its present location. 

The new mansion was augmented by 1766 with two wings, one for stables and one for offices; these 
are shown on Andrews, Drury, and Herbert's Map of Kent (published 1769) and on a painting by 



 

 
George Barrett Snr (1733-1807). Landscaping of the park appears to have been undertaken at the 
same time as the new house was built. A plan for the proposed alterations at Danson Hill c 1762/3, 
once attributed to Lancelot Brown (Fisher 1776; Hasted 1797; Stroud 1975), is now believed to have 
been drafted by his then assistant, Nathaniel Richmond (Jacques 1983; Brown 2000). 

Sir John Boyd died in 1800 and was succeeded by his son, also Sir John, who undertook a 
comprehensive programme of repair and enhancement between 1802 and 1804 before selling the 
house to cover his father's outstanding debts. During this time the wings of the house were 
demolished and new stables (listed grade II*) were constructed on a separate site at a greater 
distance from the house, using materials from the demolished wings. 

The estate plan drawn up in connection with the sale of the property to John Johnston in 1805 shows 
details of the many alterations and improvements made by the Boyds. Other than ornamentation to 
the northern boundary, few alterations were made during Johnston's lifetime (estate plan, 1823-30) 
but the Johnston family, who held the estate until 1862, were probably responsible for improvements 
recorded on the OS 1st edition map (1865). 

The new owner, Alfred Bean, and his descendants owned Danson between 1862 and 1922 and during 
that time a number of rustic lodges and a circular summerhouse were built. In 1924 Bexley Urban 
District Council acquired part of the estate named as Danson on the 1922 sale map; this included the 
house, stables, lake, and 74ha of parkland. The remainder of the estate was developed for housing 
and the construction of the A2 trunk road. In 1925 Danson was opened as a public park, the house, 
known as The Mansion, housing a museum and a cafe. Many new facilities have been created since 
1925, most of them in the area of park to the north of the house. 

The Mansion was closed in 1970 and has remained empty to the present day. It is currently (1997) 
undergoing restoration and the stables have been converted for use as a restaurant. 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Danson Park lies to the north of the A2 trunk 
road, East Rochester Way, between Welling to the north-west and Bexleyheath to the east. Suburban 
housing almost entirely encloses the site, with the A221, Danson Road providing the eastern 
boundary, Danson Mead and Parkview Road the northern boundary, and Radnor Avenue and a 
footpath to the rear of houses in Merlin Road the west boundary. 

The c 74ha site, enclosed within C20 walls and  s, is relatively flat, sloping moderately to the south 
with The Mansion located on a ridge of high ground that runs east/west through the site, this ridge 
effectively dividing the park into two halves. A valley which runs east/west across the southern part of 
the site was infilled by a lake behind an artificial dam. The height of the earth bank at the dam shows 
the significant depth of the valley. The land rises southwards in a ridge beyond the lake. 

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES The main entrance to the site is from Danson Road to the east and 
follows the line of the drive remodelled c 1897 (OS). The new drive is shown crossing parkland before 



 

 
terminating at a turning circle on the north front of The Mansion. At the same time the access drives 
to the north front were realigned so that they focused around the turning circle rather than as 
previously, on the front steps. The main entrance drive today (1997) has mown grass borders and C20 
trees and shrubs planted at intervals along its length; it is screened from the C18/C19 parkland by 
clipped hedges. It passes c 40m to the north of The Mansion, with the Old English Garden to the north 
and the turning circle to the south, and continues c 500m north-west past, to the north, the C19 
stable block (listed grade II*), before terminating at the Danson Lane Gate. On the east side of the Old 
English Garden a drive, now a tarmac footpath, passes through former parkland and connects the 
C20 Crook Log entrance with the main drive. This was the main entrance to the municipal park and is 
marked by ornate iron railings and gates. 

PRINCIPAL BUILDING The Mansion (listed grade I) stands on high ground with fine views out over 
falling ground to the south. It was built from c 1762 for John Boyd by Sir Robert Taylor and was 
originally called Danson Hill. The Mansion was completed by 1770 with some of the interiors having 
been designed by Sir William Chambers. The house is of Portland stone and has three storeys, a 
piano-nobile, and a half storey above a rusticated stone basement. The principal apartments are on 
the first floor. The walls are rendered and the roofs low and slated. The entrance is on the north side, 
up a grand flight of nineteen wide steps to a balcony as wide as the projected pedimented centre. 

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS To the north of the entrance drive, opposite The Mansion, is the 
Old English Garden, which was laid out on former parkland and probably dates from the earliest 
stages of the municipal park in the 1920s. It has a pergola, paved paths, formal plant beds, and 
modern seats. 

Some 50m north-east of The Mansion, a C20 perimeter path leads c 80m south from the entrance 
drive across an area of lawn to the east of the house. This area, open parkland on Richmond's plan of 
1762/3, had been planted with regular rows of trees by 1805 (estate plan) and subsequently (by 1830) 
thinned (plan of the property of John Johnson). The area immediately around the house is separated 
from the parkland by a hawthorn hedge to the east, and a beech hedge planted c 1970 to the south of 
the C18 ha-ha after it was filled in (mid-late C20). The line of the ha-ha, which would have divided the 
gardens from the parkland, is still recognisable as a distinctive step at the edge of the lawn. At about 
the same time (c 1860) as the beech hedge was planted, the southern perimeter path which ran 
between the ha-ha and The Mansion was re-routed to the south of the hedge. Today (1997) the hedge 
screens any view of the garden around The Mansion but three late C19 trees survive on the lawn to 
the east along with other C20 trees. Some 80m south east of The Mansion the C20 perimeter path 
turns west and continues for 160m to the south side of the beech hedge where it turns north and links 
up with the mid C19 west garden path which led around the western lawn to the Winter Garden. The 
Winter Garden, constructed by 1844, has been lost, as have the rose arches over the path. The west 
lawn was first shown as lawn with trees by c 1830 (Plan of the property of John Johnson) but the 
nature of the land before then is not clear. Mature trees including cedar of Lebanon (shown on OS 
1860) and the shrubbery along the northern edge of the western garden are thought to survive from 
the mid C19, though contemporary paths through the shrubbery have been lost. 



 

 
At its western end the southern perimeter path divides, one spur continuing north as the western 
perimeter path while the other runs south and leads down to the C20 formal garden and the water 
garden at the west end of the lake. The path is separated from the parkland by low hedges and 
shrubs, as well as some mature trees possibly surviving from the thin belt of trees which followed the 
contour down to the south-west of the house (sale plan, 1805). The C20 water garden, separated from 
the lake by a brick footbridge, is situated in the area where, in the C18, the Danson Brook fed into the 
lake. The two pieces of water that make up the water garden are recorded on the OS 1st edition map 
of 1865. 

PARK The land laid out as parkland lies to the south, west, and north of The Mansion. The land to the 
south slopes away from the house, levelling off before the lake and then rising slightly again to the 
south of the lake. The level areas of land are used for football in the winter months. Tree cover is 
sparse compared with the clumps and blocks of woodland shown on the C18 and C19 plans, and 
consists largely of a scatter of C20 individuals with more concentrated planting along the banks of 
the lake. Occasional mature trees, possibly C18/C19, survive, notably the 'Charter Oak' to the north of 
the lake. The C20 planting at the west end of the lake and around the water garden contrasts with the 
open aspect of the late C18 and early C19 (sale plan, 1805) and screens the view of the house from the 
south-west parkland. C20 plantings help to screen the site from the A2 trunk road which runs along 
the southern boundary. There is an ice well close to the eastern edge of the park. 

 
The lake is the most striking feature on Richmond's plan (1762/3) which shows a system of three 
interlocking lakes connected and divided by curving plantations and a false island. The 1805 sale plan 
shows a simplified design similar to the Lower and Middle Lakes on the C18 plan and similar to the 
piece of water at Danson today (1997). The lower (eastern) section of the lake is known to have been 
under construction by 1770 when Sir William Chambers was commissioned to design a temple at its 
eastern end and a bridge at the western end. The lake was filled in during the Second World War as it 
was considered an obvious landmark for enemy aircraft but was subsequently re-excavated; it is 
currently used for boating. There is a cafe and boathouse (C20) on the north-east shore. 

 
Little of the original parkland survives to the north and west of The Mansion. The stable block to the 
north of the house is thought to have been designed by George Dance the younger; this has been 
converted to a restaurant and is fronted by a public car park. Much of the C18/C19 park and 
woodland surrounding The Mansion has been lost to sport facilities which include tennis courts and 
playgrounds created since 1924. The views back to the house from the west are obscured by trees on 
the garden boundary. 
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Illustrations George Barrett Snr, Portrait of Danson, 1766 (in Colson Stone 1997) 

 
Description written: September 1997 Amended: October 2001 Register Inspector: LCH Edited: 
November 2001 
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STABLES TO DANSON PARK, DANSON PARK 

Official list entry 
Heritage Category: Listed Building 

Grade: II* 

List Entry Number: 1359409 

Date first listed: 01-Oct-1953 

Statutory Address 1: STABLES TO DANSON PARK, DANSON PARK 

Location 
Statutory Address: STABLES TO DANSON PARK, DANSON PARK 

The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority. 

County: Greater London Authority 

District: Bexley (London Borough) 

Parish: Non Civil Parish 

National Grid Reference: TQ 47217 75348 

Details 
DANSON PARK 1. 5005 Welling Stables to Danson Park TQ 47 NE 2/8 1.10.53 II* 2. These are 
contemporary with Danson Park Mansion, circa 1765, and were presumably designed by Sir Robert 
Taylor. Half-H plan. Portland stone. Stringcourse. Slate roof. The north or main side has a slightly 
projecting centre, with 3 coach-houses on the ground floor, having flanking pilasters and double 
doors. Above on the first floor, but at ground level, are 3 large lunette windows of 22 panes each. On 
the roof is a small octagonal wooden cupola. On each side of the centre projection is a roundheaded 
doorway, with a semi-circular fanlight and a square window of 12 panes above. The inner face of each 
half-H wing has 3 windows on the first floor and one on the ground floor, between 2 round-headed 
doorways with semi-circular fanlights. Their south ends have large round-headed rusticated arches, 
with lunette windows, in the arches above the stringcourse. 

 

 



 

 
DANSON PARK MANSION, DANSON PARK 

Official list entry 
Heritage Category: Listed Building 

Grade: I 

List Entry Number: 1064225 

Date first listed: 01-Oct-1953 

Statutory Address 1: DANSON PARK MANSION, DANSON PARK 

Location 
Statutory Address: DANSON PARK MANSION, DANSON PARK 

The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority. 

County: Greater London Authority 

District: Bexley (London Borough) 

Parish: Non Civil Parish 

National Grid Reference: TQ 47273 75179 

Details 
DANSON PARK 1. 5005 Welling TQ 47 NE 2/9 Danson Park Mansion 1.10.53. I 2. This mansion was built 
by Sir Robert Taylor about 1765 for Alderman, later Sir, John Boyd and originally called Banson Hill. 
Wings were added later, which have since been demolished. The Park was laid out by 'Capability' 
Brown in 1761. The house is of Portland stone; the ground floor being rusticated. It has 3 storeys; the 
principal apartments being on the first floor. Heavy modillion eaves cornice. Slate roof. Windows in 
moulded architrave surrounds, with glazing bars intact; those on the first floor having projecting 
cornices over and panels of balustrading below. All 4 fronts are exposed, but the north and south 
fronts are slightly wider than the east and west fronts. The east, west and south fronts have a canted 
bay of 3 windows on all floors in the centre. The north front has a square central projection, with a 
pediment over containing a round window in the typanum. The entrance is on this side. Nineteen 
wide steps, with a balustrade on each side, lead up to the front door, on the piano nobile. This has 
engaged Corinthian columns, a modillion cornice and a vase over it between volutes and a medallion 
and swags between the architrave and the moulded surround of the door. The interior has a fine 
central oval staircase, with a gallery of 8 Ionic columns on the second floor and an oval dome above, 
and some fine rooms. 
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